
* GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner.

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, November 13, 2024 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Nellie Johnson (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Dave Barker, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Committee Reports
A. Audit - Austin
B. Board Affairs - Hillyer
C. Fiscal Affairs - Johnson
D. Investments - Johnson
E. Nominations & Elections - Blake
F. Planning & Evaluation - Carden

6. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: October 23, 2024

7. Action Items
A. Request Funding Agreement for Members Assistance Program (MAP) from GVR Foundation

(Somers)
B. Consider CPM Change for Allowing Dogs at Del Sol Clubhouse (Somers)
C. Approval of Finance Policy Recommendation from Fiscal Affairs (Somers)

8. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR member
number. This time is for comments, not for questions and answers.

9. Adjournment



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, October 23, 2024, 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Nellie Johnson (Assistant Treasurer), Kathi Bachelor, Dave 
Barker, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Director Absent: Nancy Austin 

Staff Present: Howey Murray (Finance Manager), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director) 

Visitors: 32 Including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2pm MST. Secretary Carden called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Magliola seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report
• Thanked members who come to the meetings and send emails to the Board.

4. CEO Report
A. CEO Monthly Report

• The Maintenance Repair and Replacement (MRR) projects for 2024 are just about
completed. There are two roof coating projects that need to be completed.

• Desert Hills Locker Room: Architect are finishing final construction documents.
• West Center Lobby Improvement: Architects working on permitting process.
• Metal Shop: Shotgun building, behind the shuffleboard court at West Center, final

construction document are being completed by the architects.
• Contracts for these projects will come back to the Board in the next few months

and the goal is to begin projects April 1.
• Removed all the billiard tables from the West Center to Del Sol Clubhouse lower

level. Artisan Shop will be expanding into this space and is working on a floor plan.
• Del Sol Clubhouse Café: The kitchen and bar area are being completed. A vendor

will have a soft opening, maybe a Grand Opening, around December 1.
Landscaping is being done around Del Sol Clubhouse.

• Desert Hills Pool: On November 1 the pool will be closed while a consultant maps
out all the pipes at the pool to be able to identify the issue with the pool.

1

Consent Agenda 6.A.1



5. Presentations:
A. Quarterly Financial Report

• Revenue summary as of the end of September shows 3.3 percent deficit from budget,
with the Capital Revenue at almost 20 percent deficit due to lower home sales.

• Expense summary is 1.7 percent over budget with the majority of the expense in the
Program line item. Program expenses are offset with revenue. Recreation/Program
revenue is over budget by 47 percent compared to Recreation/Program expenses for
those activities are over budget by 42.3 percent.

• Projected Deficit for 2024 is $91,800. Note this total is a projected amount and is
highly dependent on housing sales through Fourth Quarter.

• GVR has a strong balance sheet.
• The Investment returns have been good this year.

MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Carden seconded to approve the Financial 
Quarterly Report. 
Passed: unanimous 

6. Committee Reports – All committee reports verbally provided and placed on file
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director English seconded to approve Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Special Meeting Minutes: September 9, 2024
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: September 25, 2024
 BOD Work Session Minutes: October 9, 2024

B. Financial Statements:
 September Financials

8. Action Items
A. Budget Approval for the Fee Schedule, Operating Budget, Capital Budget, and Capital

Improvement Plan
Highlights include:

• Changes from the Work Session on October 9, the Capital Improvement Budget
shows a delay in the Las Campanas Cyprus renovation to 2028. The West Center
Project was separated into two projects with the Lapidary Club expansion to be
done in 2025 and the Woodshop expansion moved to 2027.

• 2025 Operating Budget Expenses equal $11,685,954 (5.9 percent increase over
2024 budget).

• 2025 Capital Budget equals $5,699,127 (52 percent increase over 2024 budget).
• 2025 Grand total budget is $17,385,081 (16 percent increase over 2024 budget).
• Fee Schedule includes: $15 dues increase; Membership Change Fee increase of

$100; Transfer Fee increase is $15; Tenant Card increase of $5 for each category;
and Guest Card increase by $5.

2



MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Carden seconded to approve the Fee 
Schedule, Operating Budget, Capital Budget, and Capital Improvement Plan as 
recommended. 
Passed: unanimous 

B. Approve Appointment of the Fiscal Affairs Chair
MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve the
appointment of the Fiscal Affairs Committee Chairperson Nellie Johnson, nominated by
the President.
Passed: unanimous

C. Approve Record Date for the 2025 Election Set by the N&E Committee
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Bachelor seconded to approve January 27,
2025, as the Record Date to determine the eligible roster of voting members.
Passed: unanimous

D. Election of Treasurer
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Dingman seconded to conduct the election
of the successor Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer.
Passed: unanimous

1) Treasurer
a) Nomination
 Nellie Johnson  7  Will run
 Dave Barker 2 Will not run 
 Joe Magliola 1 Will not run 
 Nancy Austin 1 Not present 

b) Election
 Nellie Johnson 10  Treasurer

2) Assistant Treasurer
a) Nominations
 Kathi Bachelor  6 Will run
 Joe Magliola 4 Will run 
 Nancy Austin 1 Not present 

b) Elections
 Kathi Bachelor 6 Assistant Treasurer
 Joe Magliola 4 
 Nancy Austin 1 

9. Informational Report from Ad Hoc Committee Between GVR and GVR Foundation
Director Hillyer reported the Ad Hoc Committee met in September. The Ad Hoc Committee is
Bart Hillyer, Carol Crothers, and Nellie Johnson. Due to Carol Crothers resignation from the
Board, Marge Garneau will replace Carol Crothers. The committee will meet in November.

10. Member Comments – 2 comments

11. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Blake seconded to adjourn the meeting at
3:12pm.
Passed: unanimous

3



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
GVR Foundation  

Members Assistance Program Grant 
Prepared By: David Webster, CFO Meeting Date: November 13, 2024 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Finance 
Action Requested: 
Approve submitting a grant request to GVR Foundation (GVRF) in the amount of 
$25,000 for the year ending December 31, 2025, for the Member Assistance Program (MAP). 

Strategic Plan: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members. 

Background Justification: 
The Member Assistance Program, established in 1995, provides financial assistance to 
qualifying GVR members experiencing financial hardship and unable to pay GVR annual dues. 

GVR Foundation solicits funding for MAP from grants, fundraisers, and local community 
organizations. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Assist qualifying GVR members experiencing financial hardship to pay their GVR annual dues 
through monies raised by the GVR Foundation. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve submitting a grant request for $25,000 for the next year.
2) Do not approve submitting the grant request to GVR Foundation.
3) Direct staff on how to best support MAP.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve to submit a grant request to GVR Foundation in the amount of $25,000 for the next  
year ending December 31, 2025, for the Member Assistance Program (MAP). 

Attachments: 
1) GVR MAP Request for Funding Grant Application to GVR Foundation
2) History of MAP funding by GVR and the GVR Foundation

4

Action Item 7.A



Telephone: 

Email Contact: 

Date Organization Formed: 

REQUEST FOR FUNDING FROM GVR FOUNDATION 
Instructions to Applicant: Please answer each section below as thoroughly as possible. Use 
additional pages as needed, but please keep the total narrative to no more than five typed 
pages. 

Your proposed budget should itemize the use of funds requested, when you expect to need 
these funds, and a total requested amount. 

The grant funds will be expended in accordance with the attached itemized budget as funds 
become available and as grantee submits written requests for reimbursement with copies of 
invoices paid by the grantee or written requests for advance payment with supporting 
documentation and explanation for why advance payment is necessary. 

Currently, the GVR Foundation does not provide grants to political organizations, religious 
organizations, or individuals. 

Grant Applicant Organization Name: Green Valley Recreation, Inc.

Address: 1070 S Calle de las Casitas      City: Green Valley  State: AZ Zip: 85614 

Fax: 

Website: 

Tax ID # 

Reason for the Request (to choose more than one, hold ctrl key and choose all that apply): 

Charitable 
Scientific 
Educational 
Other Specified Purpose 

Total Grant Amount Requested: $ 

NAME SIGNATURE 

TITLE DATE 

520-625-3440

ssomers@gvrec.org www.gvrec.org

November 13, 1972 23-7185626

Member Assistance Program (MAP)

25,000 For the next year, 2025

Explain the Project in detail, including expected duration with proposed start and end dates, 
identity and qualifications of personnel involved, other sources of funding, and any other 
relevant information specific to your needs. 

Explain how this project will benefit the community. 

Explain your previous experience allowing you to complete the project. 

Indicate your willingness to assist the Foundation with the marketing of a capital campaign. 

Attach an itemized budget. If the project is to be done in various steps, like a construction 
project, indicate the proposed timeframe for each and the proposed financial needs at 
each stage. The grant request is for GVR Members to offset their GVR dues, in 
the approximate amount of $25,000, payable in the Spring of 2025.

Additional information about Applicant’s history and activities related to this project may 
also be attached. 

I will be happy to provide you with further information on any aspect of this request. 
Marge Garneau

President, GVR Board of Directors November 13, 2024

5



6

Attachment 2



7



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
CPM Change to Allow Dogs on Patio of Del  Sol Clubhouse 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: November 13, 2024 
Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administrative and Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Revise Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) 1.2.6.H to allow “pet friendly” policy at the Del Sol 
Clubhouse property outside on the front patio only with an owner and leash. Currently CPM 
1.2.6.H reads: Only working ADA Service Animals are permitted in or on GVR property, aside 
from GVR programs or events. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 2: Provide quality services and programs that effectively meet the recreational, social, 
and leisure education needs of our membership, allocating resources to support those 
programs. 

Background Justification: 
The Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) Café Subcommittee recommended amending the CPM to 
allow dogs on the front patio of the clubhouse due to the proximity of the DSC to the nearby 
walking trails. Staff concurs with this recommendation, but would simply recommend 
amending the CPM to allow dogs on the property, outside of the building except for the 
south facing patio. 

The Board of Directors held a discussion at the Work Session of August 14, 2024. The 
consensus was to bring the CPM policy revision back to the Board. Operations will handle 
how to accommodate the dogs if the Board changes the policy in the CPM. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the revision to the CPM to allow dogs outside on the front patio at the Del

Sol Clubhouse.
2) Approve any changes to the CPM Board discusses to allow dogs outside on the front

patio at the Del Sol Clubhouse.
3) Do not approve the CPM any revisions to the CPM.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 
Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the revision to CPM 1.2.6.H:"A standing exception to this policy exists at 
Del Sol Clubhouse where dogs on fixed-length leashes (no flexi leashes) may be permitted in 
designated outdoor areas. The GVR administration may occasionally create an exception to 
policy for a specific GVR-sponsored event or program."

Attachments: 
1) CPM 1.2.6.H Redline and Clean

8

Action Item 7.B



Redlined: 1.2.6. Uses of GVR Facilities 

H. Only working ADA Service Animals are permitted in or on GVR property, aside from GVR
programs or events. A standing exception to this policy exists at Del Sol Clubhouse where dogs on fixed-
length leashes (no flexi leashes) may be permitted in designated outdoor areas. The GVR administration
may occasionally create an exception to policy for a specific GVR-sponsored event or program.

Clean:  1.2.6. Uses of GVR Facilities 

H. Only working ADA Service Animals are permitted in or on GVR property, aside from GVR
programs or events. A standing exception to this policy exists at Del Sol Clubhouse where dogs on fixed-
length leashes (no flexi leashes) may be permitted in designated outdoor areas. The GVR administration
may occasionally create an exception to policy for a specific GVR-sponsored event or program.

9

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Finance Policy Recommendation
Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: November 13, 2024 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) and Staff 

Action Requested:  
Consider approval of the FAC recommended finance policies for inclusion in the Corporate 
Policy Manual (CPM) 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members. 
Background Information:  
Since June of 2024, the FAC has reviewed, discussed, and made amendments to staff 
recommended changes to the corporate finance policies which are addressed in the CPM. 
During its October 15, 2024, meeting, the FAC recommended the Board of Directors consider 
approval of the amendments which are red-lined in the attachment.  

The FAC will next review and discuss staff recommended improvements to the Capital 
Improvement Project Policy and Process, which the Board adopted in 2023 as a pilot 
program. The Board will be asked to consider approval of these changes in early 2025. 

Fiscal Impact: 
No cost associated with implementation 

Attachments: 
1) Redlined CPM Finance Policies

10

Action Item 7.C



11

Attachment 1



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23


	Staff Report GVR Foundation MAP Request.pdf
	1070 S Calle de las Casitas
	Green Valley
	520.625.3440
	www.gvrec.org
	Marjorie Garneau
	President, GVR Board of Directors November 13, 2024

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Attachment GVR Found MAP Request.pdf
	Blank Page




